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Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-Q/A ( Form 10-Q/A ) amends our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011,
which was originally filed on May 10, 2011 ( Original Form 10-Q ). This amendment is being filed to include restated financial statements as
described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements contained in Item 1. Financial Statements, financial data and related disclosures. The
Company is restating its previously issued consolidated financial statements as of and for the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 to reflect
the Company s determination that it did not properly account for the elimination of intercompany activity between the Company s insurance
subsidiaries and its consolidated financial guaranty variable interest entities. Included in this restatement is the correction of other immaterial

errors which affected the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010. The total effect of this restatement was a decrease to equity of $50.4 million
and $65.3 million as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, and increases to net income of $15.2 million and $11.5 million for
the quarters ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As aresult of the errors discussed above, management has now determined that the Company had a material weakness in its internal control over
financial reporting at March 31, 2011. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not

be prevented or detected on a timely basis. For a discussion of management s consideration of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures
and the material weakness identified, see Part I, Item 4, Controls and Procedures of this Form 10-Q/A.

In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ), this Form 10-Q/A sets forth the complete text of the
following items of the Original Form 10-Q as modified where necessary to reflect the restatement:

. PartI Item 1. Financial Statements;

. Part I Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;
. PartI Item 4. Controls and Procedures; and

. Part I Item 6. Exhibits.

In accordance with rules of the SEC, this Form 10-Q/A also includes as exhibits certifications from our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer dated as of the date of this filing.
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Except for the items noted above, no other information included in the Original Form 10-Q is being amended by this Form 10-Q/A. This

Form 10-Q/A continues to speak as of the date of the Original Form 10-Q and we have not updated the filing to reflect events occurring
subsequently to the Original Form 10-Q date other than those associated with the restatement of the Company s financial statements and certain
material events which are identified as to date. Accordingly, this Form 10-Q/A should be read in conjunction with the Company s filings with the
SEC subsequent to the filing of the Original 10-Q, including any amendments to those filings.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

(dollars in thousands except per share and share amounts)

Assets

Investment portfolio:

Fixed maturity securities, available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost of $9,368,735 and
$9,274,718)

Short term investments, at fair value

Other invested assets

Total investment portfolio

Cash

Premiums receivable, net of ceding commissions payable

Ceded unearned premium reserve

Deferred acquisition costs

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses

Salvage and subrogation recoverable

Credit derivative assets

Deferred tax asset, net

Current income tax receivable

Financial guaranty variable interest entities assets, at fair value

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Unearned premium reserve

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve

Reinsurance balances payable, net

Long-term debt

Credit derivative liabilities

Current income tax payable

Financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities with recourse, at fair value
Financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities without recourse, at fair value
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (See Note 13)

Common stock ($0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized; 184,044,597 and
183,744,655 shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax provision (benefit) of $8,345 and
$18,341

Deferred equity compensation (181,818 shares)

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

March 31,
2011
(restated)

9,459,814 §
813,392
264,517
10,537,723
111,587
1,118,033
794,300
235,982
18,641
1,056,961
619,303
1,031,688
159,571
3,679,025
221,855
19,584,669 $

6,637,213 $
419,592
268,221

1,049,708

2,759,326

2,874,183
1,373,006
359,367
15,740,616

1,840
2,589,197
1,164,703

86,313

2,000

3,844,053
19,584,669 $

December 31,
2010
(restated)

9,402,287
1,055,567
283,032
10,740,886
108,389
1,167,587
821,819
239,805
22,255
1,032,369
592,898
1,259,125

3,657,481
199,305
19,841,919

6,972,894
574,369
274,431

1,052,936

2,462,831

93,020

3,030,908

1,337,214
309,862

16,108,465

1,837
2,585,423
1,032,445

111,749
2,000
3,733,454
19,841,919
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

(dollars in thousands except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2011 2010
(restated) (restated)
Revenues
Net earned premiums $ 253,977 $ 314,620
Net investment income 96,061 84,302
Net realized investment gains (losses):
Other-than-temporary impairment losses (6,947) (1,117)
Less: portion of other-than-temporary impairment loss recognized in other comprehensive
income (2,369) (661)
Other net realized investment gains (losses) 7,384 9,869
Net realized investment gains (losses) 2,806 9,413
Net change in fair value of credit derivatives:
Realized gains and other settlements 35,427 26,703
Net unrealized gains (losses) (271,636) 252,098
Net change in fair value of credit derivatives (236,209) 278,801
Fair value gain (loss) on committed capital securities 526 (1,275)
Net change in financial guaranty variable interest entities 119,601 (8,913)
Other income 42,151 (12,929)
Total Revenues 278,913 664,019
Expenses
Loss and loss adjustment expenses (25,580) 110,852
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs 7,420 8,173
Assured Guaranty Municipal Holdings Inc. acquisition-related expenses 4,021
Interest expense 24,760 25,134
Other operating expenses 56,835 62,533
Total expenses 63,435 210,713
Income (loss) before income taxes 215,478 453,306
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Current (197,599) (38,953)
Deferred 272,465 158,799
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes 74,866 119,846
Net income (loss) $ 140,612 $ 333,460
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.76 $ 1.81
Diluted $ 0.75 $ 1.75
Dividends per share $ 0.045 $ 0.045

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2011 2010
(restated) (restated)
Net income (loss) $ 140,612 $ 333,460
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period, net of tax provision (benefit)
of $(10,437) and $(5,382) (25,545) 9,214
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in net income (loss), net of tax
provision (benefit) of $172 and $2,768 1,029 6,645
Change in net unrealized gains on investments (26,574) 2,569
Change in cumulative translation adjustment, net of tax provision (benefit) of $669 and
$(2,108) 1,243 (3,884)
Change in cash flow hedge, net of tax provision (benefit) of $(56) and $(56) (105) (105)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (25,436) (1,420)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 115,176 $ 332,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance, December 31, 2010

Net income

Dividends ($0.045 per share)
Dividends on restricted stock units
Share-based compensation and
other

Change in cumulative translation
adjustment

Change in cash flow hedge
Change in unrealized gains (losses)
on:

Investments with no
other-than-temporary impairment
Investments with
other-than-temporary impairment
Less: reclassification adjustment
for gains (losses) included in

net income (loss)

Balance, March 31, 2011
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity (Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

(dollars in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Shares

183,744,655

299,942

184,044,597

$

$

Amount

1,837 $

1,840 $

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

2,585,423 $

68

3,706

2,589,197 $

Retained
Earnings
(restated)
1,032,445 $
140,612
(8,286)
(63)

1,164,703 $

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
(restated)
111,749 $

1,243
(105)

(46,390)

20,845

1,029
86,313 $

Deferred
Equity
Compensation

2,000 $

2,000 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Total
Shareholders
Equity
(restated)
3,733,454
140,612
(8,286)

3,709

1,243
(105)

(46,390)

20,845

1,029
3,844,053

11
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2011 2010
(restated) (restated)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities $ (122,143) (210,399)
Investing activities
Fixed maturity securities:
Purchases (511,679) (418,032)
Sales 299,877 187,800
Maturities 183,587 265,268
Net sales (purchases) of short-term investments 242,296 219,827
Net proceeds from paydowns on financial guaranty variable interest entities assets 162,500 60,687
Other 4,246 4,867
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 380,827 320,417
Financing activities
Dividends paid (8,286) (8,305)
Share activity under option and incentive plans 2,312) (2,583)
Net paydowns of financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities (241,618) (46,157)
Repayment of long-term debt (5,095) (6,363)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities (257,311) (63,408)
Effect of exchange rate changes 1,825 (254)
Increase (decrease) in cash 3,198 46,356
Cash at beginning of period 108,389 44,133
Cash at end of period $ 111,587 90,489
Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Income taxes $ 51,465 136,645
Interest $ 12,190 12,588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

12
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

March 31, 2011

1. Business and Basis of Presentation

Business

Assured Guaranty Ltd. ( AGL and, together with its subsidiaries, Assured Guaranty orthe Company ) is a Bermuda-based holding company that
provides, through its operating subsidiaries, credit protection products to the United States ( U.S. ) and international public finance, infrastructure

and structured finance markets. The Company has applied its credit underwriting judgment, risk management skills and capital markets

experience to develop insurance, reinsurance and credit derivative products that protect holders of debt instruments and other monetary

obligations from defaults in scheduled payments, including scheduled interest and principal payments. The securities insured by the Company

include taxable and tax-exempt obligations issued by U.S. state or municipal governmental authorities, utility districts or facilities; notes or

bonds issued to finance international infrastructure projects; and asset-backed securities issued by special purpose entities. The Company

markets its credit protection products directly to issuers and underwriters of public finance, infrastructure and structured finance securities as

well as to investors in such debt obligations. The Company guarantees debt obligations issued in many countries, although its principal focus is

on the U.S., Europe and Australia.

Financial guaranty contracts accounted for as insurance provide an unconditional and irrevocable guaranty that protects the holder of a financial
obligation against non-payment of principal and interest when due. Financial guaranty contracts accounted for as credit derivatives are generally
structured such that the circumstances giving rise to the Company s obligation to make loss payments are similar to those for financial guaranty
contracts accounted for as insurance and only occurs upon one or more defined credit events such as failure to pay or bankruptcy, in each case,

as defined within the transaction documents, with respect to one or more third party referenced securities or loans. Financial guaranty contracts
accounted for as credit derivatives are primarily comprised of credit default swaps ( CDS ). In general, the Company structures credit derivative
transactions such that the circumstances giving rise to the Company s obligation to make loss payments are similar to those for financial guaranty
contracts accounted for as insurance but are governed by International Swaps and Derivative Association, Inc. ( ISDA ) documentation. The
Company has not written any new CDS since 2009 and does not expect to write CDS in the future. The Company also entered into ceded
reinsurance agreements to provide greater business diversification and reduce the net potential loss from large risks; however, ceded contracts do
not relieve the Company of its obligations. Ceded reinsurance is generally not currently available.

Public finance obligations insured by the Company consist primarily of general obligation bonds supported by the issuers taxing powers,
tax-supported bonds and revenue bonds and other obligations of states, their political subdivisions and other municipal issuers supported by the
issuers or obligors covenant to impose and collect fees and charges for public services or specific projects. Public finance obligations include
obligations backed by the cash flow from leases or other revenues from projects serving substantial public purposes, including government
office buildings, toll roads, health care facilities and utilities. Structured finance obligations insured by the Company are generally backed by
pools of assets such as residential or commercial mortgage loans, consumer or trade receivables, securities or other assets having an

13
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ascertainable cash flow or market value and issued by special purpose entities. The Company will insure other specialized financial obligations.
The Company currently does not underwrite any new U.S. residential mortgage backed security ( RMBS ) transactions. See Note 4 for
outstanding U.S. RMBS exposures.

Financial obligations guaranteed by AGL s insurance company subsidiaries are generally awarded credit ratings that are the same rating as the
financial strength rating of the AGL subsidiary that has guaranteed that obligation. Investors in products insured by the Company s insurance
company subsidiaries frequently rely on ratings published by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations ( NRSROs ) because such
ratings influence the trading value of securities and form the basis for many institutions investment guidelines as well as individuals bond
purchase decisions. Therefore, the Company manages its business with the goal of achieving high financial strength ratings, preferably the
highest that NRSROs will assign. However, the models used by NRSROs differ, presenting conflicting goals that may make it inefficient or
impractical to reach the highest rating level. The models are not fully transparent, contain subjective data (such as assumptions about future
market demand for the Company s products) and change frequently. Ratings reflect only the views of the respective NRSROs and are subject to
continuous review and revision or withdrawal at any time.

14
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

March 31, 2011

On January 24, 2011, Standard and Poor s Ratings Services ( S&P ) released a publication entitled Request for Comment: Bond Insurance Criteria,
in which it requested comments on proposed changes to its bond insurance ratings criteria. In the Request for Comment, S&P noted that it could
lower its financial strength ratings on existing investment- grade bond insurers (which include the Company s insurance subsidiaries) by one or
more rating categories if the proposed bond insurance ratings criteria are adopted, unless those bond insurers raise additional capital or reduce
risk. The proposed ratings criteria contemplate the imposition of a leverage test which is based solely on the amount of par insured and which
does not take into account the bond insurer s unearned premium reserve as a claims-paying resource; changes to S&P s capital adequacy model,
including significant increases in capital charges for both U.S. public finance obligations and structured finance obligations; and reductions in
the single risk limits for U.S. public finance obligations. This action by S&P has exacerbated uncertainty in the market over the Company s
financial strength ratings. The Company has submitted comment letters to S&P discussing the modifications that it believes would be necessary
to establish a supportable framework for determining the ratings of financial guaranty companies, and on April 21, 2011, S&P announced that it
is in the process of analyzing the feedback received from market participants and revisiting its assumptions and analysis in light of the feedback.
S&P also stated that it expects to publish the final criteria early in the third quarter of 2011 and to publish updated ratings that reflect the
application of the new criteria by September 30, 2011. If S&P were not to accept any of our comments and adopts the ratings criteria as
proposed, the new criteria could have an adverse impact on the financial strength rating of the Company s insurance subsidiaries if the Company
were unable to reduce risk or raise capital on acceptable terms. See Note 17.

Unless otherwise noted, ratings on Assured Guaranty s insured portfolio reflect its internal rating. The Company s ratings scale is similar to that
used by the NRSROs; however, the ratings in this report may not be the same as ratings assigned by any such rating agency. The super senior
category, which is not generally used by rating agencies, is used by the Company in instances where Assured Guaranty s AAA-rated exposure on
its internal rating scale has additional credit enhancement due to either (1) the existence of another security rated AAA that is subordinated to
Assured Guaranty s exposure or (2) Assured Guaranty s exposure benefiting from a different form of credit enhancement that would pay any
claims first in the event that any of the exposures incurs a loss, and such credit enhancement, in management s opinion, causes Assured
Guaranty s attachment point to be materially above the AAA attachment point.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America ( GAAP ) and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments which are of a normal recurring nature, necessary
for a fair statement of the Company s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These unaudited interim consolidated
financial statements cover the three-month period ended March 31, 2011 ( First Quarter 2011 ) and the three-month period ended March 31, 2010
( First Quarter 2010 ).

15
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These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AGL and its direct and indirect subsidiaries (collectively, the

Subsidiaries ). These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements also include the accounts of certain variable interest entities (  VIEs ).
Intercompany accounts and transactions between and among AGL and its subsidiaries have been eliminated as well as transactions between the
insurance company subsidiaries and the consolidated VIEs. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year s
presentation.

These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company s consolidated financial statements
included in the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2010, filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the SEC ).

AGL s principal insurance company subsidiaries are Assured Guaranty Corp. ( AGC ), domiciled in Maryland, Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.

( AGM ), domiciled in New York, and Assured Guaranty Re Ltd. ( AG Re ), a Bermuda insurance company. In addition, the Company also has
another U.S. and another Bermuda insurance company subsidiary that participate in a pooling agreement with AGM, two insurance subsidiaries
organized in the United Kingdom, and a mortgage insurance company. The Company s organizational structure includes various holdings

companies, two of which Assured Guaranty US Holdings Inc. ( AGUS ) and Assured Guaranty Municipal Holdings Inc. ( AGMH ) have public debt
outstanding. See Note 14.

16
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Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

March 31, 2011

Change in Accounting Policy

Prior to January 1, 2011, the Company managed its business and reported financial information for two principal financial guaranty segments:
direct and reinsurance. There has been no market for financial guaranty reinsurance in the past two years and it is not expected to develop in the
foreseeable future. The Company s reinsurance subsidiary, AG Re, now only writes new treaties with affiliates that are eliminated in
consolidation. As a result, the chief operating decision maker now manages the operations of the Company at a consolidated level and no longer
uses underwriting gain (loss) by segment as an operating metric. Therefore, segment financial information is no longer disclosed.

2. Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

AGL, through its insurance subsidiaries, has provided financial guaranties with respect to debt obligations issued by special purpose entities,
including financial guaranty VIEs. Assured Guaranty does not sponsor such financial guaranty VIEs nor does it act as the servicer or collateral
manager for any financial guaranty VIE debt obligations that it insures. However, when Assured Guaranty provides such financial guaranties, it
can obtain certain control rights through the transaction structure which make Assured Guaranty the primary beneficiary of the financial
guaranty VIE. Assured Guaranty is required under GAAP to consolidate the financial guaranty VIE in its financial statements when it is the
primary beneficiary. See Note 8. When such consolidation occurs, Assured Guaranty must eliminate the intercompany transactions between the
relevant Assured Guaranty insurance subsidiary and the consolidated financial guaranty VIE. Assured Guaranty discovered errors in the
elimination of such intercompany transactions, which resulted in the restatement of the consolidated financial statements for the three months
ended March 31, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010.

In addition, the Company was required to correct certain unrelated, immaterial errors as part of the restatement which affected expected losses,
the fair value of credit derivatives, and the classification of financial guaranty VIE assets and liabilities, which affected the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009. While these immaterial errors were corrected at the time they were identified, these restated financial statements
reflect the correction of such errors in the period in which they arose.

The effect of the restatement on the balance sheet is shown in the tables below.

As of March 31, 2011
As (€)] 2) Restated

Previously Filed Financial Other

17
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Assets

Total investment portfolio

Cash

Premiums receivable, net of ceding
commissions payable

Ceded unearned premium reserve
Deferred acquisition costs

Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses
Salvage and subrogation recoverable
Credit derivative assets

Deferred tax asset, net

Current income tax receivable

Financial guaranty variable interest entities
assets, at fair value

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders equity
Unearned premium reserve

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve
Reinsurance balances payable, net
Long-term debt

Credit derivative liabilities

Financial guaranty variable interest entities
liabilities with recourse, at fair value
Financial guaranty variable interest entities
liabilities without recourse, at fair value
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Common stock

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net
of tax provision (benefit)

Deferred equity compensation

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

$

10,505.1
95.9

1,118.0
794.3
236.0

18.6

1,057.0
619.3

1,004.5
159.6

3,679.0
221.9
19,509.2

6,637.2
407.9
268.2

1,049.7

2,761.5

2,757.8

1,373.0
359.4
15,614.7

1.8
2,589.2
1,215.9

85.6
2.0
3,894.5
19,509.2

Guaranty
VIE
Eliminations

(in millions)

32.6 $
15.7

239

72.2 $

116.4

116.4

(45.0)
0.8

(44.2)
72.2 $

Adjustments

33

33

11.7

2.2)

9.5

(6.2)

(6.2)
33

$

10,537.7
111.6

1,118.0
794.3
236.0

18.6

1,057.0
619.3

1,031.7
159.6

3,679.0
221.9
19,584.7

6,637.2
419.6
268.2

1,049.7

2,759.3

2,874.2

1,373.0
359.4
15,740.6

1.8
2,589.2
1,164.7

86.4
2.0
3,844.1
19,584.7
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March 31, 2011
As of December 31, 2010
@
Financial 2
As Gué;;nty Other
Previously Filed Eliminations Adjustments
(in millions)
Assets
Total investment portfolio $ 10,729.9 $ 11.0 $ $
Cash 107.2 1.2
Premiums receivable, net of ceding commissions
payable 1,167.6
Ceded unearned premium reserve 821.8
Deferred acquisition costs 239.8
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses 22.3
Salvage and subrogation recoverable 1,032.4
Credit derivative assets 592.9
Deferred tax asset, net 1,224.0 32.1 3.0
Financial guaranty variable interest entities assets, at
fair value 4,334.4 (676.9)
Other assets 199.2
Total assets $ 20,471.5 $ 44.3 $ (673.9) $
Liabilities and shareholders equity
Unearned premium reserve $ 6,972.9 $ $ $
Loss and loss adjustment expense reserve 563.0 114
Reinsurance balances payable, net 274.4
Long-term debt 1,052.9
Credit derivative liabilities 2,465.5 2.7)
Current income tax payable 93.0
Financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities
with recourse, at fair value 2,927.0 103.9
Financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities
without recourse, at fair value 2,014.1 (676.9)
Other liabilities 309.9
Total liabilities 16,672.7 103.9 (668.2)
Commitments and contingencies
Common stock 1.8
Additional paid-in capital 2,585.4
Retained earnings 1,098.9 (60.7) (CN))
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax
provision (benefit) 110.7 1.1
Deferred equity compensation 2.0
Total shareholders equity 3,798.8 (59.6) (5.7)

Restated

10,740.9
108.4

1,167.6
821.8
239.8

22.3

1,032.4
592.9

1,259.1

3,657.5
199.2
19,841.9

6,972.9
574.4
274.4

1,052.9

2,462.8

93.0

3,030.9

1,337.2
309.9
16,108.4

1.8
2,585.4
1,032.5

111.8

2.0
3,733.5
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Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 20,471.5 $ 44.3 $

(673.9)

$

19,841.9
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The effect of the restatement on the consolidated statements of operations is shown in the tables below.

Revenues

Net earned premiums

Net investment income

Net realized investment gains (losses)

Net change in fair value of credit derivatives
Fair value gain (loss) on committed capital securities
Net change in financial guaranty variable interest
entities

Other income

Total revenues

Expenses

Loss and loss adjustment expenses

Interest and other operating expenses

Total expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Current

Deferred

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes
Net income (loss)

Earnings per share:

Basic

Diluted

As
Previously Filed

254.0
96.4
2.8
(235.7)
0.5

93.9
42.2
254.1

(27.0)
89.0
62.0

192.1

(197.6)
264.3
66.7
1254

0.68
0.67

10

Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

@
Financial
Guaranty

VIE
Eliminations

(2)
Other

Adjustments

(in millions, except per share amounts)

$

$
(0.3)

25.7
254
1.2
1.2

242

8.5
8.5
15.7 $

(0.5)

(0.5)
0.3
0.3

(0.8)

(0.3)
(0.3)
0.5)

Restated

254.0
96.1
2.8
(236.2)
0.5

119.6
42.2
279.0

(25.5)
89.0
63.5

215.5

(197.6)
272.5
74.9
140.6

0.76
0.75
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2010
@
Financial 2
As Gu{l]xl'::nty Other
Previously Filed Eliminations Adjustments

(in millions, except per share amounts)
Revenues
Net earned premiums $ 319.6 $ 49 3 $
Net investment income 84.3
Net realized investment gains (losses) 9.4
Net change in fair value of credit derivatives 278.8
Fair value gain (loss) on committed capital securities (1.3)
Net change in financial guaranty variable interest
entities (10.6) 1.7
Other income (12.9)
Total revenues 667.3 3.2)
Expenses
Loss and loss adjustment expenses 130.5 (14.2) 5.4)
Interest and other operating expenses 99.9
Total expenses 230.4 (14.2) 5.4)
Income (loss) before income taxes 436.9 11.0 54
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Current (39.0)
Deferred 153.9 3.9 1.0
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes 114.9 3.9 1.0
Net income (loss) $ 322.0 $ 7.1 $ 4.4 $
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 1.74 $
Diluted $ 1.69 $

11

Restated

314.7
84.3
9.4
278.8
(1.3)

(8.9)
(12.9)
664.1

110.9

99.9
210.8
453.3

(39.0)
158.8
119.8
333.5

1.81
1.75
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The effect of the restatement on the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is shown in the tables below.

Net income

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the
period

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)
Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Change in cumulative translation adjustment
Change in cash flow hedge

Other comprehensive income(loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)

Net income

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the
period

Less: reclassification adjustment for gains (losses)
Change in net unrealized gains on investments
Change in cumulative translation adjustment
Change in cash flow hedge

Other comprehensive income(loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)

As
Previously Filed

$ 125.4

(25.2)
1.0
(26.2)
1.2
(0.1)
(25.1)

$ 100.3

As
Previously Filed

$ 322.0

9.2

6.6

2.6
(3.9)
0.1)
(1.4)

$ 320.6

12

Three Months Ended March 31, 2011
0
Financial @)
Guaranty
VIE
Eliminations
(in millions)

$ 15.7 $ 0.5)

Other
Adjustments

(0.3)

(0.3)

(0.3)
$ 154 $ 0.5)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2010

@)
ginancii\l 2
uaranty
VIE Other
Eliminations Adjustments
(in millions)

$ 7.1 $ 4.4
$ 71§ 4.4

Restated

$ 140.6

(25.5)
1.0

(26.5)

12

0.1)

(25.4)

$ 115.2

Restated
$ 333.5

9.2

6.6

2.6

(3.9)

(0.1)

(1.4)

$ 332.1
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The effect of the restatement on the consolidated statements of cash flows is shown in the tables below.

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities

Fixed maturity securities:

Purchases

Sales

Maturities

Net sales (purchases) of short-term investments

Net proceeds from paydowns on financial guaranty variable interest
entities assets

Other

Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing activities

Dividends paid

Share activity under option and incentive plans

Net paydowns of financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities
Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes

Increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period

Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities

Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

As

Previously
Filed

(158.2)

(511.7)
299.9
184.2
263.3

162.5
4.2
402.4

(8.3)
(2.3)
(241.6)
(5.1)
(257.3)
1.8
(11.3)
107.2
95.9

Three Months Ended March 31, 2010

As

Previously
Filed

(236.6)

@
Financial
Guaranty

VIE
Eliminations
(in millions)

$ 36.1

(0.6)
(21.0)

(21.6)

14.5
1.2
$ 15.7

@
Financial
Guaranty

VIE
Eliminations
(in millions)

$ 26.2

Restated

(122.1)

(511.7)
299.9
183.6
242.3

162.5
4.2
380.8

(8.3)
2.3)
(241.6)
(5.1)
(257.3)
1.8
3.2
108.4
111.6

Restated

(210.4)

24



Edgar Filing: ASSURED GUARANTY LTD - Form 10-Q/A

Fixed maturity securities:

Purchases

Sales

Maturities

Net sales (purchases) of short-term investments

Net proceeds from paydowns on financial guaranty variable interest
entities assets

Other

Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing activities

Dividends paid

Share activity under option and incentive plans

Net paydowns of financial guaranty variable interest entities liabilities
Repayment of long-term debt

Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

Increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period

13

(418.0)

187.8
265.3
246.0

60.7
4.8
346.6

(8.3)
(2.6)
(46.2)
(6.3)
(63.4)
0.2)
46.4
44.1
90.5

$

(26.2)

(26.2)

(418.0)
187.8
265.3
219.8

60.7
4.8
3204

(8.3)
(2.6)
(46.2)
(6.3)
(63.4)
(0.2)
46.4
441
90.5
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March 31, 2011
1) Represents adjustments related to the correction of financial guaranty VIE intercompany eliminations.
2) Represents other adjustments of immaterial errors. These corrections related to (a) errors in expected losses that had

previously been corrected by the Company in the period such errors were identified, but which are now being recorded in the period in which
they arose, (b) an error related to one credit derivative contract that resulted from the use of an incorrect par outstanding balance in the pricing
model and (c) the correction of an error related to the classification of financial guaranty VIE assets and liabilities that resulted from a
misinterpretation of a trustee report.

The Company also revised certain disclosures in Note 16 as part of the restatement of these financial statements.

3. Business Changes, Risks, Uncertainties and Accounting Developments

Summarized below are updates of the most significant events since the year-end 2010 that have had, or may have in the future, a material effect
on the financial position, results of operations or business prospects of the Company.

Bank of America Agreement

On April 14, 2011, Assured Guaranty reached a comprehensive agreement with Bank of America Corporation and its subsidiaries, including
Countrywide Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively, Bank of America ), regarding their liabilities with respect to 29 RMBS
transactions insured by Assured Guaranty, including claims relating to reimbursement for breaches of representations and warranties ( R&W ) and
historical loan servicing issues ( Bank of America Agreement ). Of the 29 RMBS transactions, eight are second lien transactions and 21 are first
lien transactions. The Bank of America Agreement covers Bank of America sponsored securitizations that AGM or AGC has insured, as well as
certain other securitizations containing concentrations of Countrywide originated loans that AGM or AGC has insured. The transactions covered

by the Bank of America Agreement have a gross par outstanding of $5.2 billion ($4.8 billion net par outstanding) as of March 31, 2011, or 29%

of Assured Guaranty s total below investment grade ( BIG ) RMBS net par outstanding.
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Bank of America paid Assured Guaranty $850 million on April 14, 2011 and is obligated to pay another $250 million by March 2012. In
addition, Bank of America will reimburse Assured Guaranty 80% of claims Assured Guaranty pays on the 21 first lien transactions, up to
collateral losses of $6.6 billion. On April 14, 2011, Bank of America placed $1 billion of eligible assets into trust in order to collateralize the
reimbursement obligation relating to the first lien transactions. The amount of assets required to be posted may increase or decrease from time to
time, as determined by rating agency requirements. As of March 31, 2011, cumulative collateral losses on these first lien RMBS transactions
were approximately $1.5 billion, AGM had paid $2.0 million in claims and the Company s estimated gross economic loss before considering
R&W benefit on these transactions was $538.3 million, which assumes cumulative projected collateral losses of $4.8 billion.

The execution of the Bank of America Agreement is considered a Type 1 subsequent event, meaning that the terms of the Bank of America
Agreement provide additional evidence about the estimates inherent in the loss estimation process at March 31, 2011. A Type 1 subsequent
event requires that such additional information obtained subsequent to the reporting date be used when preparing the financial statements if
financial statements have not yet been issued for the previous reporting period. Therefore, the March 31, 2011 loss estimates incorporate updated
assumptions and estimates reflecting the terms of the Bank of America Agreement. The First Quarter 2011 benefit for R&W reflects higher
expected recoveries across all transactions as a result of the Bank of America Agreement. For transactions covered under the Bank of America
Agreement, the R&W benefit has been updated to reflect amounts collected and expected to be collected subsequent to March 31, 2011 under
the terms of the Bank of America Agreement. For transactions with other sponsors of U.S. RMBS, against which the Company is pursuing
R&W claims, the Company has increased the benefit for R&W to reflect the probability that actual recovery rates may be higher than originally
expected. For transactions with counterparties other than Bank of America, the Company has continued to review additional loan files and has
found breach rates consistent with those in the Bank of America and Countrywide transactions. Therefore, the Company assumed higher
recovery rates in First Quarter 2011.

14
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4. Outstanding Exposure

The Company s insurance policies and credit derivative contracts are written in different forms, but collectively are considered financial guaranty
contracts. They typically guarantee the scheduled payments of principal and interest ( Debt Service ) on public finance and structured finance
obligations. The Company seeks to limit its exposure to losses by underwriting obligations that are investment grade at inception, diversifying its
portfolio and maintaining rigorous subordination or collateralization requirements on structured finance obligations. The Company also has
utilized reinsurance by ceding business to third- party reinsurers. The Company provides financial guaranties with respect to debt obligations of
special purpose entities, including VIEs. Based on accounting standards in effect during any given reporting period, some of these VIEs are
consolidated as described in Note 8. The outstanding par and Debt Service amounts presented below include outstanding exposures on VIEs
whether or not they are consolidated.

Debt Service Outstanding

Gross Debt Service Outstanding Net Debt Service Outstanding
March 31, December 31, March 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
(in millions)
Public finance $ 835,072 $ 851,634 $ 746,388 $ 760,167
Structured finance 170,440 178,348 159,611 166,976
Total $ 1,005,512 $ 1,029,982 $ 905,999 $ 927,143

Financial Guaranty Portfolio by Internal Rating

As of March 31, 2011

Public Finance Public Finance Structured Finance Structured Finance
U.S. Non-U.S. U.S Non-U.S Total
Net Par Net Par Net Par Net Par Net Par
Rating Category Outstanding % Outstanding % Outstanding % Outstanding % Outstanding %
(dollars in millions)

Super senior $ %0 1,486 3.6% $ 22,256 19.7% $ 8,081 27.0% $ 31,823 5.3%
AAA 5,587 1.3 1,382 3.3 41,376 36.6 12911 43.1 61,256 10.2
AA 156,954 37.6 1,367 3.3 15,776 13.9 1,970 6.6 176,067 29.2
A 210,705 50.5 12,932 30.9 6,181 5.5 1,827 6.1 231,645 38.5
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BBB

BIG

Total net par
outstanding

Rating Category

Super senior
AAA

AA

A

BBB

BIG

Total net par
outstanding

41,130
2,991

$ 417,367
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Public Finance

U.S.

Net Par
Outstanding

$
5,784
161,906
214,199
41,948
3,159

$ 426,996

9.9 22,793 54.4 6,841 6.0 3,903 12.9 74,667
0.7 1,868 4.5 20,678 18.3 1,292 4.3 26,829
100.0% $ 41,828 100.0% $ 113,108 100.0 $ 29,984 100.0% $ 602,287
As of December 31, 2010
Public Finance Structured Finance Structured Finance
Non-U.S. UsS Non-U.S Total
Net Par Net Par Net Par Net Par
% Outstanding % Outstanding % Outstanding % Outstanding
(dollars in millions)
%% 1,420 3.5% $ 21,837 18.4% $ 7,882 25.7% $ 31,139
1.4 1,378 34 45,067 37.9 13,573 443 65,802
37.9 1,330 33 17,355 14.6 1,969 6.4 182,560
50.2 12,482 30.6 6,396 5.4 1,873 6.1 234,950
9.8 22,338 54.8 7,543 6.4 4,045 13.2 75,874
0.7 1,795 4.4 20,558 17.3 1,294 4.3 26,806
100.0% $ 40,743 100.0% $ 118,756 100.0% $ 30,636 100.0% $ 617,131

12.3
4.5

100.0%

%

5.0%
10.7
29.6
38.1
12.3

4.3

100.0%

In addition to amounts shown in the tables above, the Company had outstanding commitments to provide guaranties of $3.7 billion for structured

finance and $1.3 billion for public finance commitments at March 31, 2011. The structured finance commitments include the unfunded

component of and delayed draws on pooled corporate transactions. Public finance commitments typically relate to primary and secondary public

finance debt issuances. The expiration dates for the public finance commitments range between April 1, 2011 and February 1, 2019, with

$0.9 billion expiring prior to December 31, 2011. All the commitments are contingent on the satisfaction of all conditions set forth in them and
may expire unused or be cancelled at the counterparty s request. Therefore, the total commitment amount does not necessarily reflect actual
future guaranteed amounts.

15
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Significant Risk Management Activities

The Risk Oversight and Audit Committees of the Board of Directors of AGL oversee the Company s risk management policies and procedures.
With input from the board committees, specific risk policies and limits are set by the Portfolio Risk Management Committee, which includes
members of senior management and senior Credit and Surveillance officers.

Risk Management and Surveillance personnel are responsible for monitoring and reporting on all transactions in the insured portfolio. The
primary objective of the surveillance process is to monitor trends and changes in transaction credit quality, detect any deterioration in credit
quality, and recommend to management such remedial actions as may be necessary or appropriate. All transactions in the insured portfolio are
assigned internal credit ratings, and Surveillance personnel are responsible for recommending adjustments to those ratings to reflect changes in
transaction credit quality.

Work-out personnel are responsible for managing work-out and loss mitigation situations. They develop strategies designed to enhance the
ability of the Company to enforce its contractual rights and remedies and to mitigate its losses, engage in negotiation discussions with
transaction participants and, when necessary, manage (along with Legal personnel) the Company s litigation proceedings.

Since the onset of the financial crisis, the Company has shifted personnel to loss mitigation and work-out activities and hired new personnel to
augment its efforts. Although the Company s loss mitigation efforts may extend to any transaction it has identified as having loss potential, much
of the recent activity has been focused on RMBS.

Generally, when mortgage loans are transferred into a securitization, the loan originator(s) and/or sponsor(s) provide R&W that the loans meet
certain characteristics, and a breach of such R&W often requires that the loan be repurchased from the securitization. In many of the transactions
the Company insures, it is in a position to enforce these requirements. The Company uses internal resources as well as third party forensic
underwriting firms and legal firms to pursue breaches of R&W. If a provider of R&W refuses to honor its repurchase obligations, the Company
may choose to initiate litigation. See Recovery Litigation in Note 5 below.

The quality of servicing of the mortgage loans underlying an RMBS transaction influences collateral performance and ultimately the amount (if
any) of the Company s insured losses. The Company has established a group to mitigate RMBS losses by influencing mortgage servicing,
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including, if possible, causing the transfer of servicing or establishing special servicing.

In the fall of 2010, several large RMBS servicers suspended foreclosures because of allegations of a widespread failure to comply with
foreclosure procedures and faulty loan documentation. These issues are being investigated by various state attorney general offices throughout
the U.S. The suspension of foreclosures and subsequent investigation will lead to additional servicing costs and expenses, including without
limitation, increased advances by the servicers for principal and interest, taxes, insurance and legal costs. The Company is increasing its
monitoring efforts to ensure that the servicers comply with their obligations under servicing contracts, including bearing the losses and expenses
incurred as a result of this issue. These same foreclosure issues are expected to impact the timing of losses to RMBS transactions that the
Company has insured, which may impact the speed at which various classes of RMBS securities amortize, and so could impact the size of losses
ultimately paid by the Company. The Company expects these issues to take some time to resolve.

The Company may also employ other strategies as appropriate to avoid or mitigate losses in U.S. RMBS or other areas. For example, the
Company may pursue litigation or enter into other arrangements to alleviate all or a portion of certain risks.

Surveillance Categories

The Company segregates its insured portfolio into investment grade and BIG surveillance categories to facilitate the appropriate allocation of
resources to monitoring and loss mitigation efforts and to aid in establishing the appropriate cycle for periodic review for each exposure. BIG
exposures include all exposures with internal credit ratings below BBB-. The Company s internal credit ratings are based on the Company s
internal assessment of the likelihood of default. The Company s internal credit ratings are expressed on a ratings scale similar to that used by the
rating agencies and are generally reflective of an approach similar to that employed by the rating agencies.

The Company monitors its investment grade credits to determine whether any new credits need to be internally downgraded to BIG. The
Company refreshes its internal credit ratings on individual credits in quarterly, semi-annual or

16
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annual cycles based on the Company s view of the credit s quality, loss potential, volatility and sector. Ratings on credits in sectors identified as
under the most stress or with the most potential volatility are reviewed every quarter. The Company s insured credit ratings on assumed credits
are based in large part on the ceding company s credit rating of the transactions, although, to the extent information is available, the Company
will conduct an independent review of low rated credits or credits in volatile sectors. For example the Company models all assumed RMBS
credits with par above $1 million, as well as certain RMBS credits below that amount.

Credits identified as BIG are subjected to further review to determine the probability of a loss (see Note 5 Loss estimation process ). Surveillance
personnel then assign each BIG transaction to the appropriate BIG surveillance category based upon whether a lifetime loss is expected and
whether a claim has been paid. The Company expects lifetime losses on a transaction when the Company believes there is more than a 50%
chance that, on a present value basis, it will pay more claims over the life of that transaction than it will ultimately have been reimbursed. For
surveillance purposes, the Company calculates present value using a constant discount rate of 5%. (A risk free rate is used for recording of

reserves for financial statement purposes.) A liquidity claim is a claim that the Company expects to be reimbursed within one year.

Intense monitoring and intervention is employed for all BIG surveillance categories, with internal credit ratings reviewed quarterly. The three
BIG categories are:

. BIG Category 1: Below investment grade transactions showing sufficient deterioration to make lifetime losses possible, but for which
none are currently expected. Transactions on which claims have been paid but are expected to be fully reimbursed (other than investment grade
transactions on which only liquidity claims have been paid) are in this category.

. BIG Category 2: Below investment grade transactions for which lifetime losses are expected but for which no claims (other than
liquidity claims) have yet been paid.

. BIG Category 3: Below investment grade transactions for which lifetime losses are expected and on which claims (other than
liquidity claims) have been paid. Transactions remain in this category when claims have been paid and only a recoverable remains.

Financial Guaranty Exposures
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First lien U.S. RMBS:
Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM

Subprime (including net interest
margin securities)

Second lien U.S. RMBS:
Closed end second lien
Home equity lines of credit
( HELOCs )

Total U.S. RMBS

Other structured finance
Public finance

Total
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(Insurance and Credit Derivative Form)

BIG 1

(restated)

$ 82
919
3

62
161

495

1,722

2,887

3,691

$ 8,300

$

17

March 31, 2011

BIG Net Par Outstanding
BIG 2 BIG 3
(in millions)
(restated)
519
3,485 549
1,433 1,327
2,734 185
441 482
3,314
8,612 5,857
457 2,435
282 886
9,351 9,178

Total
BIG

$ 601
4,953
2,763

2,981
1,084

3,809
16,191
5,779
4,859
$ 26,829

Net Par
Outstanding

$ 813
5,939
3,020

8,726
1,114

4,513

24,125
118,967
459,195

$ 602,287

BIG Net Par as
a %
of Net Par
Outstanding

0.1%
0.8
0.5

0.5
0.2

0.6
2.7
1.0
0.8
4.5%
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First lien U.S. RMBS:

Prime first lien $
Alt-A first lien

Option ARM

Subprime (including net interest

margin securities)

Second lien U.S. RMBS:

Closed end second lien

HELOCs

Total U.S. RMBS

Other structured finance

Public finance

Total $

BIG 1

(restated)

March 31, 2011
December 31, 2010
BIG Net Par Outstanding
BIG 2 BIG 3 Total BIG
(in millions)
(restated)

82 $ 542 $ $ 624
976 3,108 573 4,657
33 2,186 640 2,859
729 2,248 106 3,083
63 444 624 1,131
369 3,632 4,001
2,252 8,528 5,575 16,355
2,687 363 2,447 5,497
3,752 283 919 4,954
8,691 $ 9,174 $ 8,941 $ 26,806

Net Par Outstanding for Below Investment Grade Credits

Net Par
Outstanding
Financial
Guaranty
Description Insurance
(restated)
BIG:
Category 1 $ 4,921
Category 2 5,586
Category 3 7,490
Total BIG $ 17,997
Description Net Par
Outstanding

Number of
Financial
Guaranty

Credits
in Category

(restated)

129

96
117
342

Number of
Financial

As of March 31, 2011

Number of
Net Par Credit
Outstanding Derivatives
Credit Credits
Derivatives in Category

(dollars in millions)

$ 3,379 31
3,765 48
1,688 18
$ 8,832 97

As of December 31, 2010
Net Par Number of
Outstanding Credit

Net Par
Outstanding

$ 849
6,134
3,214

9,039

1,164

4,730

25,130
124,262
467,739

$ 617,131

BIG Net Par
Outstanding
Total

(restated)

$ 8,300
9,351
9,178
$ 26,829

BIG Net Par
Outstanding

BIG Net Par as

a %

of Net Par
Outstanding

0.1%
0.8
0.5

0.4

0.2
0.6
2.6
0.9
0.8
4.3%

Total Number

of BIG

Credits

(restated)

160
144
135
439

Total Number

of BIG
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BIG:
Category 1
Category 2
Category 3
Total BIG

5. Financial Guaranty Contracts Accounted for as Insurance

$
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Financial
Guaranty
Insurance

(restated)

5,450
5,717
7,281
18,448

Guaranty
Credits
in Category

(restated)

119

98
115
332

Credit
Derivatives

Derivatives
Credits
in Category

(dollars in millions)

3,241
3,457
1,660
8,358

31
50
12
93

$

Total

(restated)

8,601
9,174
8,941
26,806

Credits

(restated)

150
148
127
425

The following tables present net premium earned, premium receivable activity, expected collections of future premiums and expected future
earnings on the existing book of business. The tables below provide the expected timing of premium revenue recognition, before accretion, and
the expected timing of loss and loss adjustment expenses ( LAE ) recognition, before accretion. Actual collections may differ from expected
collections in the tables below due to factors such as foreign exchange rate fluctuations and counterparty collectability issues. The amount and
timing of actual premium earnings and loss expense may differ from the estimates shown below due to factors such as refundings, accelerations,
future commutations, and updates to loss estimates.
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March 31, 2011

Net Earned Premiums

First Quarter
2011 2010
(in millions)

(restated)

Scheduled net earned premiums $ 214.9 $ 286.6

Acceleration of premium earnings(1) 29.6 15.4

Accretion of discount on net premiums receivable 9.0 12.1

Total financial guaranty 253.5 314.1

Other 0.5 0.6

Total net earned premiums(2) $ 254.0 $ 314.7

(1) Reflects the unscheduled refundings of underlying insured obligations.

2) Excludes $19.1 million and $10.9 million in First Quarter 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to consolidated VIEs.




Edgar Filing: ASSURED GUARANTY LTD - Form 10-Q/A

Table of Contents

Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

March 31, 2011

Gross Premium Receivable, Net of Ceding Commissions Roll Forward

First Quarter

2010
(in millions)
(restated)
Balance beginning of period 1,167.6 $ 1,418.2
Change in accounting(1) (19.0)
Balance beginning of the period, adjusted 1,167.6 1,399.2
Premium written, net 48.0 83.7
Premium payments received, net (72.8) (113.3)
Adjustments to the premium receivable:
Changes in the expected term of financial guaranty
insurance contracts (51.1) 9.6
Accretion of the discount 9.2 13.9
Foreign exchange translation 15.9 (38.6)
Other adjustments 1.2 2.4
Balance, end of period 1,118.0 $ 1,356.9
(1) Represents elimination of premium receivable related to consolidated financial guaranty VIEs.

Gains or losses due to foreign exchange rate changes relate to installment premium receivables denominated in currencies other than the U.S.
dollar. Approximately 45% and 42% of the Company s installment premiums at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, are
denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily in euro and British Pound Sterling.

For premiums received in installments, premium receivable is the present value of premiums due or expected to be collected over the life of the
contract. Installment premiums typically relate to structured finance transactions, where the insurance premium rate is determined at the
inception of the contract but the insured par is subject to prepayment throughout the life of the deal. Premium receipts are typically made from
insured deal cash flows that are senior to payments made to the holders of the insured securities. When there are significant changes to expected
premium collections, an adjustment is recorded to premium receivable, with a corresponding adjustment to deferred premium revenue.

Expected Collections of Gross Premiums Receivable,
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Net of Ceding Commissions

March 31, 2011(1)
(in millions)
Gross premium collections expected:

2011 (April 1 - June 30) $ 67.7
2011 (July 1 - September 30) 34.7
2011 (October 1 - December 31) 57.3
2012 120.5
2013 105.3
2014 93.8
2015 84.5
2016 - 2020 339.4
2021 - 2025 237.6
2026 - 2030 170.6
After 2030 217.7
Total gross expected collections $ 1,529.1
1) Represents undiscounted amounts expected to be collected.
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The unearned premium reserve is comprised of deferred premium revenue and the contra-paid as presented in the table below.

Net Unearned Premium Reserve

As of March 31, 2011 As of December 31, 2010
Gross Ceded Net Gross Ceded Net
Unearned Unearned Unearned Unearned Unearned Unearned
Premium Premium Premium Premium Premium Premium
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve
(in millions)

Deferred premium revenue $ 6,823.5 $ 816.5 $ 6,007.0 $ 7,108.6 $ 846.6 $ 6,262.0
Contra-paid (195.9) (22.2) (173.7) (146.1) (24.8) (121.3)
Total financial guaranty 6,627.6 794.3 5,833.3 6,962.5 821.8 6,140.7
Other 9.6 9.6 10.4 10.4
Total $ 6,637.2 $ 794.3 $ 5,842.9 $ 6,972.9 $ 821.8 $ 6,151.1

Net deferred premium revenue will be recognized as net earned premiums. Amounts expected to be recognized in net earned premiums differ
significantly from expected cash collections due primarily to amounts in deferred premium revenue representing cash already collected on
policies paid upfront and fair value adjustments recorded in connection with the acquisition of AGHM on July 1, 2009 ( AGMH Acquisition ).

The following table provides a schedule of the expected timing of the income statement recognition of financial guaranty insurance net deferred
premium revenue and present value of net expected losses to be expensed, pre-tax. This table excludes amounts related to consolidated VIEs.

Expected Timing of Financial Guaranty Insurance

Premium and Loss Recognition

As of March 31, 2011

Scheduled Net Expected
Net Earned Loss to be
Premium Expensed(1) Net
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(in millions)

(restated) (restated)

2011 (April 1 - June 30) $ 200.4 $ 48.1 $ 152.3
2011 (July 1 - September 30) 185.1 49.2 135.9
2011 (October 1 - December 31) 171.6 40.3 131.3
2012 589.9 111.1 478.8
2013 491.2 62.0 429.2
2014 4347 46.0 388.7
2015 385.4 37.4 348.0
2016 - 2020 1,451.2 139.1 1,312.1
2021 - 2025 918.3 68.5 849.8
2026 - 2030 567.9 54.9 513.0
After 2030 611.3 53.6 557.7
Total present value basis(2)(3) 6,007.0 710.2 5,296.8
Discount 358.4 517.5 (159.1)
Total future value $ 6,365.4 $ 1,227.7 $ 5,137.7
1) These amounts reflect the Company s estimate as of March 31, 2011 of expected losses to be expensed and are not

included in loss and LAE reserve because loss and LAE is only recorded for the amount total loss exceeds deferred
premium revenue, determined on a contract-by-contract basis.

2) Balances represent discounted amounts.

3) The effect of consolidating financial guaranty VIEs resulted in a reduction of $294.0 million in future scheduled net
earned premium and $196.6 million in expected loss and LAE to be expensed, excluding accretion of discount.

21




Edgar Filing: ASSURED GUARANTY LTD - Form 10-Q/A

Table of Contents

Assured Guaranty Ltd.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

March 31, 2011

Selected Information for Policies Paid in Installments

As of As of
March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(dollars in millions)
Premiums receivable, net of ceding commission

payable $ 1,118.0 $ 1,167.6
Gross deferred premium revenue 2,733.0 2,933.6
Weighted-average risk-free rate used to discount

premiums 3.6% 3.5%
Weighted-average period of premiums receivable

(in years) 10.1 10.1

Loss Estimation Process

The Company s loss reserve committees estimate expected losses for the Company s financial guaranty exposures. Surveillance personnel present
analysis related to potential losses to the Company s loss reserve committees for consideration in estimating the expected loss of the Company.
Such analysis includes the consideration of various scenarios with potential probabilities assigned to them. Depending upon the nature of the

risk, the Company s view of the potential size of any loss and the information available to the Company, that analysis may be based upon
individually developed cash flow models, internal credit rating assessments and sector-driven loss severity assumptions, judgmental assessment

or, in the case of its assumed business, loss estimates provided by ceding insurers. The Company s loss reserve committees review and refresh

the Company s expected loss estimates each quarter. The Company s estimate of ultimate loss on a policy is subject to significant uncertainty over
the life of the insured transaction due to the potential for significant variability in credit performance due to changing economic, fiscal and

financial market variability over the long duration of most contracts. The determination of expected loss is an inherently subjective process
involving numerous estimates, assumptions and judgments by management.

The following table presents a roll forward of the present value of net expected loss and LAE to be paid for financial guaranty contracts
accounted for as insurance by sector. Expected loss to be paid is the Company s estimate of the present value of future claim payments, net of
reinsurance and net of salvage and subrogation which includes the present value benefit of estimated recoveries for breaches of R&W.

Financial Guaranty Insurance
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U.S. RMBS:

First lien:

Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM
Subprime

Total first lien

Second lien:

Closed end second lien
HELOCs

Total second lien

Total U.S. RMBS
Other structured finance
Public finance

Total
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Present Value of Net Expected Loss and LAE to be paid

Roll Forward by Sector(1)

Expected
Loss to be
Paid as of
December 31,
2010

(restated)

$ 1.4
184.4
523.7
200.4
909.9

56.6

(805.7)

(749.1)

160.8

159.1

88.9

$ 408.8

Development
and
Accretion
of Discount(2)
(in millions)
(restated)

01 8
6.5
(114.7)
(17.8)
(125.9)

(106.4)
77.6
(28.8)
(154.7)
16.3
(13.6)
(152.0) $

Less:
Paid
Losses

19.5
86.9
15.1
121.5

27.1
64.6
91.7
213.2
24
9.0
224.6

Expected
Loss to be
Paid as of
March 31,
2011

(restated)

1.5
171.4
322.1
167.5
662.5

(76.9)
(792.7)
(869.6)
(207.1)

173.0

66.3
322
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Expected Expected

Loss to be Development Loss to be

Paid as of and Less: Paid as of

December 31, Accretion Paid March 31,
2009 of Discount(2) Losses 2010
(in millions)

(restated) (restated) (restated)
U.S. RMBS:
First lien:
Prime first lien $ 0.4 $ 0.4
Alt-A first lien 204.4 9.0 14.0 199.4
Option ARM 545.2 31.8 16.4 560.6
Subprime 77.5 50.0 0.9 126.6
Total first lien 827.1 91.2 31.3 887.0
Second lien:
Closed end second lien 199.3 (42.3) 20.5 136.5
HELOCs (206.6) 63.6 149.0 (292.0)
Total second lien (7.3) 21.3 169.5 (155.5)
Total U.S. RMBS 819.8 112.5 200.8 731.5
Other structured finance 115.7 0.9 3.7 112.9
Public finance 130.9 20.1 24.4 126.6
Total $ 1,066.4 133.5 $ 228.9 971.0
1) Amounts include all expected payments whether or not the insured transaction VIE is consolidated. Amounts exclude

expected losses for mortgage business of $2.1 million as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

2) Represents economic loss development plus accretion of discount in the period.

The Company s expected LAE for mitigating claim liabilities were $16.5 million and $17.2 million as of March 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively. The Company used weighted-average risk free rates ranging from 0% to 5.29% and 0% to 5.34% to discount expected losses
as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

The table below provides a reconciliation of the Company s expected loss to be paid to expected loss to be expensed. Expected loss to be paid
differs from expected loss to be expensed due to: (1) the contra-paid because the payments have been made but have not yet been expensed,
(2) for transactions with a net expected recovery, the addition of claim payments that have been made (and therefore are not included in expected
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loss to be paid) that are expected to be recovered in the future (and therefore have also reduced expected loss to be paid), and (3) loss reserves
that have already been established and therefore expensed but not yet paid.

Reconciliation of Present Value of Net Expected Loss to be Paid

and Present Value of Net Expected Loss to be Expensed

As of As of
March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(in millions)
(restated) (restated)
Net expected loss to be paid $ 32.2 $ 408.8
Less: net expected loss to be paid for financial
guaranty VIEs 24.9 49.2
Total 7.3 359.6
Contra-paid, net 173.7 121.3
Salvage and subrogation recoverable, net(1) 928.1 903.0
Loss and LAE reserve, net(2) (398.9) (550.0)
Net expected loss to be expensed(3) $ 710.2 $ 833.9
(1) The March 31, 2011 amount consists of gross salvage and subrogation amounts of $1,057.0 million net of ceded amounts

of $128.9 million which is recorded in reinsurance balances payable. The December 31, 2010 amount consists of gross salvage and subrogation

amounts of $1,032.4 million net of ceded amounts of $129.4 million which is recorded in reinsurance balances payable.
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2) Represents loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses, excluding $2.1 million in reserves for
other run off lines of business as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

3) Excludes $196.6 million and $211.9 million as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, related to
consolidated financial guaranty VIEs.

The Company s Approach to Projecting Losses in U.S. RMBS

The Company projects losses in U.S. RMBS on a transaction-by-transaction basis by projecting the performance of the underlying pool of
mortgages over time and then applying the structural features (i.e., payment priorities and tranching) of the RMBS to the projected performance
of the collateral over time. The resulting projected claim payments or reimbursements are then discounted to a present value using a risk free
rate. For transactions where the Company projects it will receive recoveries from providers of R&W, the projected amount of recoveries is
included in the projected cash flows from the collateral. The Company runs, and probability-weights, several sets of assumptions (referred to

as scenarios ) regarding potential mortgage collateral performance.

The further behind a mortgage borrower falls in payments, the more likely it is that he or she will default. The rate at which borrowers from a
particular delinquency category (number of monthly payments behind) eventually default is referred to as the liquidation rate. Liquidation rates
may be derived from observed roll rates, which are the rates at which loans progress from one delinquency category to the next and eventually to
default and liquidation. The Company applies liquidation rates to the mortgage loan collateral in each delinquency category and makes certain
timing assumptions to project near-term mortgage collateral defaults from loans that are currently delinquent.

Mortgage borrowers that are not more than one payment behind (generally considered performing borrowers) have demonstrated an ability and
willingness to pay throughout the recession and mortgage crisis, and as a result are viewed as less likely to default than delinquent borrowers.
Performing borrowers that eventually default will also need to progress through delinquency categories before any defaults occur. The Company
projects how much of the currently performing loans will default and when by first converting the projected near term defaults of delinquent
borrowers derived from liquidation rates into a vector of conditional default rates, then projecting how the conditional default rates will develop
over time. Loans that are defaulted pursuant to the conditional default rate after the liquidation of currently delinquent loans represent defaults of
currently performing loans. A conditional default rate is the outstanding principal amount of loans defaulting in a given month divided by the
remaining outstanding amount of the whole pool of loans (or collateral pool balance ). The collateral pool balance decreases over time as a result
of scheduled principal payments, partial and whole principal repayments, and defaults.
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In order to derive collateral pool losses from the collateral pool defaults it has projected, the Company applies a loss severity. The loss severity is
the amount of loss the transaction experiences on a defaulted loan after the application of net proceeds from the disposal of the underlying
property. The Company projects loss severities by sector based on experience to date. Further detail regarding the assumptions and variables the
Company used to project collateral losses in its U.S. RMBS portfolio may be found below in the sections U.S. Second Lien RMBS Loss
Projections: HELOCs and Closed-End Second Lien and U.S. First Lien RMBS Loss Projections: Alt-A First Lien, Option ARM, Subprime
and Prime .

The Company is in the process of enforcing claims for breaches of R&W regarding the characteristics of the loans included in the collateral
pools. The Company calculates a credit to the RMBS issuer for such recoveries where the R&W were provided by an entity the Company
believes to be financially viable and where the Company already has access or believes it will attain access to the underlying mortgage loan files.
In second liens this credit is based on a factor of actual repurchase rates achieved, while in first liens this credit is estimated by reducing
collateral losses projected by the Company to reflect a factor of the recoveries the Company believes it will achieve, which factor is derived
based on the number of breaches identified to date and incorporated scenarios based on the amounts the Company was able to negotiate under
the Bank of America Agreement. The first lien approach is different than the second lien approach because of the Company s first lien
transactions have multiple tranches and a more complicated method is required to correctly allocate credit to each tranche. In each case, the
credit is a function of the projected lifetime collateral losses in the collateral pool, so an increase in projected collateral losses increases the
representation and warranty credit calculated by the Company for the RMBS issuer. Further detail regarding how the Company calculates these
credits may be found under Breaches of Representations and Warranties below.
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The Company projects the overall future cash flow from a collateral pool by adjusting the payment stream from the principal and interest
contractually due on the underlying mortgages for (a) the collateral losses it projects as described above, (b) assumed voluntary prepayments and
(c) recoveries for breaches of R&W as described above. The Company then applies an individual model of the structure of the transaction to the
projected future cash flow from that transaction s collateral pool to project the Company s future claims and claim reimbursements for that
individual transaction. Finally, the projected claims and reimbursements are discounted to a present value using a risk free rate. As noted above,
the Company runs several sets of assumptions regarding mortgage collateral performance, or scenarios, and probability weights them.

First Quarter-End 2011 U.S. RMBS Loss Projections

The Company s RMBS projection methodology assumes that the housing and mortgage markets will eventually recover. Accordingly, the
Company retaining the initial plateau period used in the previous quarter reflects an assumption that the recovery in the housing and mortgage
markets will be delayed by another three months.

The scenarios used to project RMBS collateral losses in first quarter of 2011, with the exception of an increase in the recovery time for second
lien transactions and an increase to the initial Alt-A first lien and Option ARM loss severities, were the same as those employed at year-end
2010. During the First Quarter 2011, the Company observed continued elevated levels of early stage delinquencies. As a result, it adjusted its
second lien loss projection curves to reflect its view that the recovery would be longer and more gradual than it had anticipated at year-end 2010.
The Company also adjusted its probability weights to reflect that this adjustment was made to each of its second lien scenarios. Additionally,
during the First Quarter 2011, the Company noted that Alt-A first lien and Option ARM loss severities appeared to be trending higher. As a
result, it increased its initial loss severity for Alt-A first lien and Option ARM collateral from 60% to 65%.

The Company also used generally the same methodology to project the credit received by the RMBS issuers for recoveries in R&W in First
Quarter 2011 as it used at year-end 2010. The primary difference relates to the Company s execution of the Bank of America Agreement and the
inclusion of the terms of the agreement as a potential scenario in transactions not sponsored by Bank of America. The Company also added
R&W credits for two second lien transactions where the Company concluded it had the right to obtain loan files that it had not previously
concluded were accessible. The Company also added R&W credits for ten first lien transactions where either it concluded it had the right to
obtain loan files that it had not previously concluded were accessible or where it anticipates receiving a benefit due to the Bank of America
Agreement. See Bank of America Agreement in Note 3.

U.S. Second Lien RMBS Loss Projections: HELOCs and Closed-End Second Lien
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The Company insures two types of second lien RMBS: those secured by HELOCsSs and those secured by closed end second lien mortgages.
HELOC:s are revolving lines of credit generally secured by a second lien on a one to four family home. A mortgage for a fixed amount secured
by a second lien on a one to four family home is generally referred to as a closed end second lien. Both first lien RMBS and second lien RMBS
sometimes include a portion of loan collateral with a different priority than the majority of the collateral. The Company has material exposure to
second lien mortgage loans originated and serviced by a number of parties, but the Company s most significant second lien exposure is to
HELOC: originated and serviced by Countrywide, a subsidiary of Bank of America. See Breaches of Representations and Warranties.

The delinquency performance of HELOC and closed end second lien exposures included in transactions insured by the Company began to
deteriorate in 2007, and such transactions, particularly those originated in the period from 2005 through 2007, continue to perform below the
Company s original underwriting expectations. While insured securities benefit from structural protections within the transactions designed to
absorb collateral losses in excess of previous historical high levels, in many second lien RMBS projected losses now exceed those structural
protections.

The Company believes the primary variables impacting its expected losses in second lien RMBS transactions are the amount and timing of
future losses in the collateral pool supporting the transactions and the amount of loans repurchased for breaches of R&W. Expected losses are
also a function of the structure of the transaction; the voluntary prepayment rate (typically also referred to as conditional prepayment rate of the
collateral); the interest rate environment; and assumptions about the draw rate and loss severity. These variables are interrelated, difficult to
predict and subject to considerable volatility. If actual experience differs from the Company s assumptions, the losses incurred could be
materially different from the estimate. The Company continues to update its evaluation of these exposures as new information becomes
available.

The following table shows the Company s key assumptions used in its calculation of estimated expected losses for the Company s direct vintage
2004 - 2008 second lien U.S. RMBS as of March 31, 2011, December 31, 2010, and March 31, 2010:
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Assumptions in Base Case Expected Loss Estimates

Second Lien RMBS(1)

As of As of As of
HELOC Key Variables March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 March 31, 2010
Plateau conditional default rate 4.7% - 21.4% 4.2% -22.1% 11.5% - 38.0%
Final conditional default rate trended down to 0.4% - 3.2% 0.4% - 3.2% 0.5% - 3.2%
Expected period until final conditional default rate 36 months 24 months 21 months
Initial conditional prepayment rate 0.9% - 12.6% 3.3% - 17.5% 0.4% - 13.4%
Final conditional prepayment rate 10% 10% 10%
Loss severity 98% 98% 95%
Initial draw rate 0.0% - 5.2% 0.0% - 6.8% 0.2% - 4.8%

As of As of As of
Closed end second lien Key Variables March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 March 31, 2010
Plateau conditional default rate 7.2% - 28.9% 7.3% -27.1% 21.5% - 44.2%
Final conditional default rate trended down to 2.9% - 8.1% 2.9% - 8.1% 2.9% - 8.1%
Expected period until final conditional default rate achieved 36 months 24 months 21 months
Initial conditional prepayment rate 0.9% - 12.7% 1.3% - 9.7% 0.8% - 3.6%
Final conditional prepayment rate 10% 10% 10%
Loss severity 98% 98% 95%
1) Represents assumptions for most heavily weighted scenario (the base case ).

In second lien transactions the projection of near-term defaults from currently delinquent loans is relatively straightforward because loans in
second lien transactions are generally charged off (treated as defaulted) by the securitization s servicer once the loan is 180 days past due. Most
second lien transactions report the amount of loans in five monthly delinquency categories (i.e., 30-59 days past due, 60-89 days past due,
90-119 days past due, 120-149 days past due and 150-179 days past due). The Company estimates the amount of loans that will default over the
next five months by calculating current representative liquidation rates (the percent of loans in a given delinquency status that are assumed to
ultimately default) from selected representative transactions and then applying an average of the preceding 12 months liquidation rates to the
amount of loans in the delinquency categories. The amount of loans projected to default in the first through fifth months is expressed as a
conditional default rate. The first four months conditional default rate is calculated by applying the liquidation rates to the current period past
due balances (i.e., the 150-179 day balance is liquidated in the first projected month, the 120-149 day balance is liquidated in the second
projected month, the 90-119 day balance is liquidated in the third projected month and the 60-89 day balance is liquidated in the fourth projected
month). For the fifth month the conditional default rate is calculated using the average 30-59 day past due balances for the prior three months.
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An average of the third, fourth and fifth month conditional default rates is then used as the basis for the plateau period that follows the embedded
five months of losses.

As of March 31, 2011, in the base scenario, the conditional default rate (the plateau conditional default rate ) was held constant for one month.
Once the plateau period has ended, the conditional default rate is assumed to gradually trend down in uniform increments to its final long-term
steady state conditional default rate. In the base scenario, the time over which the conditional default rate trends down to its final conditional
default rate is thirty months (compared to eighteen months at year-end 2010). Therefore, the total stress period for second lien transactions
would be thirty-six months which is comprised of: five months of delinquent data, a one month plateau period and 30 months decrease to the
steady state conditional default rate. This is twelve months longer than the 24 months of total stress period used at year-end 2010.The long-term
steady state conditional default rates are calculated as the constant conditional default rates that would have yielded the amount of losses
originally expected at underwriting. When a second lien loan defaults, there is generally very low recovery. Based on current expectations of
future performance, the Company assumes that it will only recover 2% of the collateral.

The rate at which the principal amount of loans is prepaid may impact both the amount of losses projected (which is a function of the conditional
default rate and the loan balance over time) as well as the amount of excess spread (which is the excess of the interest paid by the borrowers on
the underlying loan over the amount of interest and expenses owed on the insured obligations). In the base case, the current conditional
prepayment rate is assumed to continue until the end of the plateau before gradually increasing to the final conditional prepayment rate over the
same period the conditional default rate decreases. For transactions where the initial conditional prepayment rate is higher than the final
conditional prepayment rate, the initial conditional prepayment rate is held constant. The final conditional prepayment rate is assumed to be 10%
for both
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HELOC and closed end second lien transactions. This level is much higher than current rates, but lower than the historical average, which
reflects the Company s continued uncertainty about performance of the borrowers in these transactions. This pattern is consistent with how the
Company modeled the conditional prepayment rate at year-end 2010. To the extent that prepayments differ from projected levels it could
materially change the Company s projected excess spread.

The Company uses a number of other variables in its second lien loss projections, including the spread between relevant interest rate indices, and
HELOC draw rates (the amount of new advances provided on existing HELOCs expressed as a percent of current outstanding advances). For
HELOC transactions, the draw rate is assumed to decline from the current level to the final draw rate over a period of three months. The final
draw rates were assumed to range from 0.0% to 2.6%.

In estimating expected losses, the Company modeled and probability weighted three possible conditional default rate curves applicable to the
period preceding the return to the long-term steady state conditional default rate. Given that draw rates have been reduced to levels below the
historical average and that loss severities in these products have been higher than anticipated at inception, the Company believes that the level of
the elevated conditional default rate and the length of time it will persist is the primary driver behind the likely amount of losses the collateral
will suffer (before considering the effects of repurchases of ineligible loans). The Company continues to evaluate the assumptions affecting its
modeling results.

At March 31, 2011, the Company s base case assumed a one month conditional default rate plateau and a 30 months ramp down (for a total stress
period of 36 months). Increasing the conditional default rate plateau to 4 months and keeping the ramp down at 30 months (for a total stress
period of 39 months) would increase the expected loss by approximately $88.3 million for HELOC transactions and $9.8 million for closed end
second lien transactions. On the other hand, keeping the conditional default rate plateau at one month but decreasing the length of the conditional
default rate ramp down to a 24 month assumption (for a total stress period of 30 months) would decrease the expected loss by approximately
$80.1 million for HELOC transactions and $3.9 million for closed end second lien transactions.

U.S. First Lien RMBS Loss Projections: Alt-A First Lien, Option ARM, Subprime and Prime

First lien RMBS are generally categorized in accordance with the characteristics of the first lien mortgage loans on one to four family homes
supporting the transactions. The collateral supporting subprime RMBS transactions is comprised of first-lien residential mortgage loans made to
subprime borrowers. A subprime borrower is one considered to be a higher risk credit based on credit scores or other risk characteristics.
Another type of RMBS transaction is generally referred to as  Alt-A first lien. The collateral supporting such transactions is comprised of
first-lien residential mortgage loans made to prime quality borrowers who lack certain ancillary characteristics that would make them prime.
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‘When more than 66% of the loans originally included in the pool are mortgage loans with an option to make a minimum payment that has the
potential to negatively amortize the loan (i.e., increase the amount of principal owed), the transaction is referred to as an Option ARM. Finally,
transactions may be primarily composed of loans made to prime borrowers. Both first lien RMBS and second lien RMBS sometimes include a
portion of loan collateral with a different priority than the majority of the collateral.

The performance of the Company s first lien RMBS exposures began to deteriorate in 2007 and such transactions, particularly those originated in
the period from 2005 through 2007 continue to perform below the Company s original underwriting expectations. The Company currently
projects first lien collateral losses many times those expected at the time of underwriting. While insured securities benefitted from structural
protections within the transactions designed to absorb some of the collateral losses, in many first lien RMBS transactions, projected losses

exceed those structural protections.

The majority of projected losses in first lien RMBS transactions are expected to come from non-performing mortgage loans (those that are
delinquent, in foreclosure or where the loan has been foreclosed and the RMBS issuer owns the underlying real estate). An increase in
non-performing loans beyond that projected in the previous period is one of the primary drivers of loss development in this portfolio. In order to
determine the number of defaults resulting from these delinquent and foreclosed loans, the Company applies a liquidation rate assumption to
loans in each of various delinquency categories. The Company arrived at its liquidation rates based on data in loan performance and assumptions
about how delays in the foreclosure process may ultimately affect the rate at which loans are liquidated. The liquidation rate is a standard
industry measure that is used to estimate the number of loans in a given aging category that will default within a specified time period. The
Company projects these liquidations to occur over two years.
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The following table shows the Company s liquidation assumptions for various delinquency categories. There were no changes to the liquidation
rates as of March 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and March 31, 2010.

First Lien Liquidation Rates

30 - 59 Days Delinquent

Alt-A first lien 50%
Option ARM 50
Subprime 45
60 - 89 Days Delinquent

Alt-A first lien 65
Option ARM 65
Subprime 65
90 - Bankruptcy

Alt-A first lien 75
Option ARM 75
Subprime 70
Foreclosure

Alt-A first lien 85
Option ARM 85
Subprime 85
Real Estate Owned

Alt-A first lien 100
Option ARM 100
Subprime 100

While the Company uses liquidation rates as described above to project defaults of non-performing loans, it projects defaults on presently
current loans by applying a conditional default rate trend. The start of that conditional default rate trend is based on the defaults the Company
projects will emerge from currently nonperforming loans. The total amount of expected defaults from the non-performing loans is translated into
a constant conditional default rate (i.e., the conditional default rate plateau), which, if applied for each of the next 24 months, would be sufficient
to produce approximately the amount of defaults that were calculated to emerge from the various delinquency categories. The conditional default
rate thus calculated individually on the collateral pool for each RMBS is then used as the starting point for the conditional default rate curve used
to project defaults of the presently performing loans.
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In the base case, each transaction s conditional default rate is projected to improve over 12 months to an intermediate conditional default rate
(calculated as 15% of its conditional default rate plateau); that intermediate conditional default rate is held constant for 36 months and then trails
off in steps to a final conditional default rate of 5% of the conditional default rate plateau. Under the Company s methodology, defaults projected
to occur in the first 24 months represent defaults that can be attributed to loans that are currently delinquent or in foreclosure, while the defaults
projected to occur using the projected conditional default rate trend after the first 24 month period represent defaults attributable to borrowers
that are currently performing.

Another important driver of loss projections is loss severity, which is the amount of loss the transaction incurs on a loan after the application of
net proceeds from the disposal of the underlying property. Loss severities experienced in first lien transactions have reached historical high
levels and the Company is assuming that these historical high levels will continue for another year. The Company determines its initial loss
severity based on actual recent experience. The Company then assumes that loss severities begin returning to levels consistent with underwriting
assumptions beginning in March 2012, and in the base scenario decline over two years to 40%.
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The following table shows the Company s key assumptions used in its calculation of expected losses for the Company s direct vintage
2004 - 2008 first lien U.S. RMBS as of March 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and March 31, 2010.

Key Assumptions in Base Case Expected Loss Estimates of First Lien RMBS Transactions

As of As of As of
March 31, December 31, March 31,

2011 2010 2010
Alt-A First Lien
Plateau conditional default rate 2.7% - 40.2% 2.6% - 42.2% 2.0% - 34.4%
Intermediate conditional default rate 0.4% - 6.0% 0.4% - 6.3% 0.3% - 5.2%
Final conditional default rate 0.1% - 2.0% 0.1% -2.1% 0.1% - 1.7%
Initial loss severity 65% 60% 60%
Initial conditional prepayment rate 0.4% - 40.5% 0.0% - 36.5% 0.0% - 27.9%
Final conditional prepayment rate 10% 10% 10%
Option ARM
Plateau conditional default rate 12.3% - 33.2% 11.7% - 32.7% 15.1% - 27.4%
Intermediate conditional default rate 1.8% - 5.0% 1.8% - 4.9% 2.3% -4.1%
Final conditional default rate 0.6% - 1.7% 0.6% - 1.6% 0.8-1.4%
Initial loss severity 65% 60% 60%
Initial conditional prepayment rate 0.0% - 24.5% 0.0% - 17.7% 0.0% - 12.3%
Final conditional prepayment rate 10% 10% 10%
Subprime
Plateau conditional default rate 8.0% - 34.3% 9.0% - 34.6% 7.8% - 30.4%
Intermediate conditional default rate 1.2% - 5.1% 1.3% - 5.2% 1.2% - 4.6%
Final conditional default rate 0.4% - 1.7% 0.4% - 1.7% 0.4% - 1.5%
Initial loss severity 80% 80% 75%
Initial conditional prepayment rate 0.0% - 13.3% 0.0% - 13.5% 0.0% - 12.5%
Final conditional prepayment rate 10% 10% 10%

The rate at which the principal amount of loans is prepaid may impact both the amount of losses projected (since that amount is a function of the
conditional default rate and the loan balance over time) as well as the amount of excess spread (the amount by which the interest paid by the

borrowers on the underlying loan exceeds the amount of interest owed on the insured obligations). The assumption for the conditional
prepayment rate follows a similar pattern to that of the conditional default rate. The current level of voluntary prepayments is assumed to
continue for the plateau period before gradually increasing over 12 months to the final conditional prepayment rate, which is assumed to be
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either 10% or 15% depending on the scenario run. For transactions where the initial conditional prepayment rate is higher than the final
conditional prepayment rate, the initial conditional prepayment rate is held constant.

The ultimate performance of the Company s first lien RMBS transactions remains highly uncertain and may be subject to considerable volatility
due to the influence of many factors, including the level and timing of loan defaults, changes in housing prices and other variables. The
Company will continue to monitor the performance of its RMBS exposures and will adjust the loss projections for those transactions based on
actual performance and management s estimates of future performance.

In estimating expected losses, the Company modeled and probability weighted sensitivities for first lien transactions by varying its assumptions
of how fast recovery is expected to occur. The primary variable when modeling sensitivities was how quickly the conditional default rate
returned to its modeled equilibrium, which was defined as 5% of the current conditional default rate. The Company also stressed conditional
prepayment rates and the speed of recovery of loss severity rates. In a somewhat more stressful environment than that of the base case, where the
conditional default rate recovery was more gradual and the final conditional prepayment rate was 15% rather than 10%, the Company s expected
losses would increase by approximately $8.3 million for Alt-A first liens, $57.3 million for Option ARMs, $25.7 million for subprime and

$0.1 million for prime transactions. In an even more stressful scenario where the conditional default rate plateau was extended 3 months (to be
27 months long) before the same more gradual conditional default rate recovery and loss severities were assumed to recover over 4 rather than

2 years (and subprime loss severities were assumed to recover only to 60%), the Company s expected losses would increase by approximately
$40.6 million for Alt-A first liens, $142.3 million for Option ARMs, $170.8 million for subprime and $0.6 million for prime transactions. The
Company also considered a scenario where
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the recovery was faster than in its base case. In this scenario, where the conditional default rate plateau was 3 months shorter (21 months,
effectively assuming that liquidation rates would improve) and the conditional default rate recovery was more pronounced, the Company s
expected losses would decrease by approximately $22.5 million for Alt-A first liens, $76.7 million for Option ARMs, $30.7 million for subprime
and $0.3 million for prime transactions.

Breaches of Representations and Warranties

The Company is pursuing reimbursements for breaches of R&W regarding loan characteristics. Performance of the collateral underlying certain
first and second lien securitizations has substantially differed from the Company s original expectations. The Company has employed several
loan file diligence firms and law firms as well as devoted internal resources to review the mortgage files surrounding many of the defaulted
loans. The Company s success in these efforts resulted in two negotiated agreements, to date, in respect of the Company s R&W claims, including
on April 14, 2011 with Bank of America as described under Bank of America Agreement in Note 3. Additionally, for the counterparties with
which the Company had not settled its claims for breaches of representations and warranties, the Company had performed a detailed review of
approximately 13,500 second lien and 15,400 first lien defaulted loan files, representing approximately $940 million in second lien and

$4.5 billion in first lien outstanding par of defaulted loans underlying insured transactions. The Company identified approximately 12,000
second lien transaction loan files and approximately 14,550 first lien transaction loan files that breached one or more R&W regarding the
characteristics of the loans, such as misrepresentation of income or employment of the borrower, occupancy, undisclosed debt and
non-compliance with underwriting guidelines at loan origination. The Company continues to review new files as new loans default and as new
loan files are made available to it. The Company generally obtains the loan files from the originators or servicers (including master servicers). In
some cases, the Company requests loan files via the trustee, which then requests the loan files from the originators and/or servicers. On second
lien loans, the Company requests loan files for all charged-off loans. On first lien loans, the Company requests loan files for all severely (60+
days) delinquent loans and all liquidated loans. Recently, the Company started requesting loan files for all the loans (both performing and
non-performing) in certain deals to limit the number of requests for additional loan files as the transactions season and loans charge-off, become
60+ days delinquent or are liquidated. The Company takes no repurchase credit for R&W breaches on loans that are expected to continue to
perform. Following negotiations with the providers of the R&W, as of March 31, 2011, the Company had reached agreement for providers to
repurchase $33 million of second lien and $42 million of first lien loans. The $33 million for second lien loans represents the calculated
repurchase price for 123 loans and the $42 million for first lien loans represents the calculated repurchase price for 378 loans. The repurchase
proceeds are paid to the RMBS transactions and distributed in accordance with the payment priorities set out in the transaction agreements, so
the proceeds are not necessarily allocated to the Company on a dollar-for-dollar basis. Proceeds projected to be reimbursed to the Company on
transactions where the Company has already paid claims are viewed as a recovery on paid losses. For transactions where the Company has not
already paid claims, projected recoveries reduce projected loss estimates. In either case, projected recoveries have no effect on the amount of the
Company s exposure. These amounts reflect payments made pursuant to the negotiated transaction agreements and not payments made pursuant
to legal settlements. See Recovery Litigation below for a description of the related legal proceedings the Company has commenced.

The Company has included in its net expected loss estimates as of March 31, 2011 an estimated benefit from loan repurchases related to
breaches of R&W of $2.2 billion, which includes amounts with Bank of America. The amount of benefit recorded as a reduction of expected
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losses was calculated by extrapolating each transaction s breach rate on defaulted loans to projected defaults and, in the case of transactions
subject to the Bank of America Agreement, the estimated impact of that agreement on the relevant transactions. See Bank of America
Agreement in Note 3. The Company did not incorporate any gain contingencies or damages paid from potential litigation in its estimated
repurchases. The amount the Company will ultimately recover related to contractual R&W is uncertain and subject to a number of factors
including the counterparty s ability to pay, the number and loss amount of loans determined to have breached R&W and, potentially, negotiated
settlements or litigation recoveries. As such, the Company s estimate of recoveries is uncertain and actual amounts realized may differ
significantly from these estimates. In arriving at the expected recovery from breaches of R&W, the Company considered the credit worthiness of
the provider of the R&W, the number of breaches found on defaulted loans, the success rate in resolving these breaches with the provider of the
R&W and the potential amount of time until the recovery is realized.

The calculation of expected recovery from breaches of R&W involved a variety of scenarios which ranged from the Company recovering
substantially all of the losses it incurred due to violations of R&W to the Company realizing very limited recoveries. The Company did not
include any recoveries related to breaches of R&W in amounts greater than the losses it expected to pay under any given cash flow scenario.
These scenarios were probability weighted in order to determine the recovery incorporated into the Company s reserve estimate. This approach
was used for both loans that had already defaulted and those assumed to default in the future. In all cases, recoveries were limited to amounts
paid or expected to be paid by the Company.
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The following table represents the Company s total estimated recoveries netted in expected loss to be paid, from defective mortgage loans
included in certain first and second lien U.S. RMBS loan securitizations that it insures. The Company had $2.2 billion of estimated recoveries
from ineligible loans as of March 31, 2011, of which $1.0 billion is reported in salvage and subrogation recoverable, $0.8 billion is netted in loss
and LAE reserves and $0.4 billion is netted in the unearned premium reserve portion of its stand- ready obligation reported on the Company s
consolidated balance sheet. The Company had $1.6 billion of estimated recoveries from ineligible loans as of December 31, 2010, of which

$0.9 billion is reported in salvage and subrogation recoverable, $0.5 billion is netted in loss and LAE reserves and $0.2 billion is netted in

unearned premium reserve portion of its stand-ready obligation reported on the Company s consolidated balance sheet.

Roll Forward of Estimated Benefit from Recoveries from Representation and Warranty Breaches,

Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM
Subprime

Closed end second lien
HELOC

Total

Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM
Subprime

Closed end second lien
HELOC

Total

Future Net
R&W
Benefit at
December 31, 2010

$ 1.1
81.0

309.3

26.8

178.2

1,004.1

$ 1,600.5

Future Net
R&W
Benefit at
December 31, 2009

$
64.2
203.7
76.5
828.7
$ 1,173.1

Net of Reinsurance

R&W Less:
Development and R&W
Accretion of Recovered
Discount during 2011 During 2011(1)
(dollars in millions)
$ 1.2 $
39.7
3353 25.6
54.3
95.0
154.5 339
$ 680.0 $ 59.5
R&W Less:
Development and R&W
Accretion of Recovered
Discount during 2010 During 2010(1)
(dollars in millions)
$ 0.9 $
11.6
40.0 7.7
60.2
433 22.7
$ 156.0 $ 30.4

Future Net
R&W
Benefit at
March 31, 2011(2)

23
120.7
619.0

81.1
273.2
1,124.7
2,221.0

Future Net
R&W
Benefit at
March 31, 2010

0.9
75.8
236.0

136.7

849.3
1,298.7
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(D) Gross amount recovered are $64.2 million and $34.8 million in First Quarter 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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2) Includes R&W benefit of $1,324.3 million attributable to transactions covered by the Bank of America Agreement.

Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM
Subprime

Closed end second lien
HELOC

Total

# of Insurance
Policies with

March 31, 2011

1
21
12

4

4
16
58

R&W Benefit Recorded as of
December 31, 2010
(dollars in millions)

1
17
11

1

4
13

47

31

as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

$

Financial Guaranty Insurance U.S. RMBS Policies with R& W Benefit

Outstanding Principal
and Interest
Policies with

R&W Benefit Recorded as of

March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

55.6
1,909.9
2,099.7

995.9
411.0
3,909.7
9,381.8

$

57.1
1,882.8
1,909.8

228.7
444.9
2,969.8
7,493.1
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The following table provides a breakdown of the development and accretion amount in the roll forward of estimated recoveries associated with
alleged breaches of R&W:

First Quarter
2011 2010
(in millions)
Inclusion of new deals with breaches of R&W

during period $ 107.1 $ 62.4
Change in recovery assumptions as the result of

additional file review and recovery success 198.4 29.8
Estimated increase in defaults that will result in

additional breaches 39.8 63.7
Results of Bank of America Agreement 334.1

Accretion of discount on balance 0.6 0.1
Total $ 680.0 $ 156.0

The $680.0 million R&W development and accretion of discount during First Quarter 2011 in the above table resulted in large part from the
Bank of America Agreement the Company executed on April 14, 2011 with Bank of America related to the Company s R&W claims and
described under Bank of America Agreement in Note 3. The benefit of the Bank of America Agreement is included in the R&W credit for the
transactions directly impacted by the agreement. In addition, the Bank of America Agreement caused the Company to increase the probability of
successful pursuit of R&W claims against other providers where the Company believed those providers were breaching at a similar rate. Also,
during First Quarter 2011, the Company added four transactions not subject to the Bank of America Agreement for which it expects R&W
benefits, because it concluded it had the right to obtain loan files it had not previously concluded were accessible. The remainder of the
development primarily relates to additional projected defaults. The accretion of discount was not a primary driver of the development. The
Company assumes that recoveries on HELOC and closed end second lien loans that were not subject to the Bank of America Agreement will
occur in two to four years from the balance sheet date depending on the scenarios and that recoveries on Alt-A first lien, Option ARM and
Subprime loans will occur as claims are paid over the life of the transactions. Recoveries on second lien transactions subject to the Bank of
America Agreement will be paid in full by March 31, 2012.

Student Loan Transactions

The Company has insured or reinsured $3.0 billion net par of student loan securitization transactions, $1.5 billion issued by private issuers and
classified as asset-backed and $1.5 billion issued by public authorities and classified as public finance. Of these amounts, $243.7 million and
$585.7 million, respectively, are rated BIG. The Company is projecting approximately $57.4 million and $13.6 million, respectively, of losses in
these portfolios. In general the losses are due to: (i) the poor credit performance of private student loan collateral; (ii) high interest rates on
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auction rate securities with respect to which the auctions have failed or (iii) high interest rates on variable rate demand obligations that have been
put to the liquidity provider by the holder and are therefore bearing high bank bond interest rates. The largest of these losses was approximately
$31.8 million and related to a transaction backed by a pool of private student loans ceded to AG Re by another monoline insurer. The guaranteed
bonds were issued as auction rate securities that now bear a high rate of interest due to the primary insurer s downgrade. Further the underlying
loan collateral has performed below expectations. The Company has estimated its losses based upon a weighting of potential outcomes.

XXX Life Insurance Transactions

The Company has insured $2.1 billion of net par in XXX life insurance reserve securitization transactions based on discrete blocks of individual
life insurance business. In these transactions the monies raised by the sale of the bonds insured by the Company were used to capitalize a special
purpose vehicle that provides reinsurance to a life insurer or reinsurer. The monies are invested at inception in accounts managed by third-party
investment managers. In order for the Company to incur an ultimate net loss on these transactions, adverse experience on the underlying block of
life insurance policies and/or credit losses in the investment portfolio would need to exceed the level of credit enhancement built into the
transaction structures. In particular, such credit losses in the investment portfolio could be realized in the event that circumstances arise resulting
in the early liquidation of assets at a time when their market value is less than their intrinsic value.

The Company s $2.1 billion net par of XXX life insurance transactions includes, as of March 31, 2011, a total of $882.5 million rated BIG,
comprising Class A-2 Floating Rate Notes issued by Ballantyne Re p.l.c and Series A-1 Floating Rate Notes issued by Orkney Re II p.l.c

( Orkney Re II ). The Ballantyne Re and Orkney Re II XXX transactions had material amounts of their assets invested in U.S. RMBS
transactions. Based on its analysis of the information currently
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available, including estimates of future investment performance provided by the current investment manager, and projected credit impairments

on the invested assets and performance of the blocks of life insurance business at March 31, 2011, the Company s gross expected loss, prior to
reinsurance or netting of unearned premium, for its two BIG XXX insurance transactions was $70.1 million. The Company s net loss and LAE
reserve was $59.6 million.

Other Notable Transactions

The preceding pages describe the sectors in the financial guaranty portfolio that encompass most of the Company s projected losses. The
Company also projects losses on a number of other transactions, the most significant of which are described in the following paragraphs.

The Company has projected estimated losses of $28.3 million on its total net par outstanding of $494.4 million on Jefferson County Alabama
Sewer Authority exposure. This estimate is based primarily on the Company s view of how much debt the Authority should be able to support
under certain probability-weighted scenarios. See Note 17.

The Company has projected estimated losses of $8.8 million on a transaction backed by revenues generated by telephone directory yellow pages
in various jurisdictions with a net par of $110.8 million and insured by Ambac Assurance Corporation ( Ambac ). This estimate is based primarily
on the Company s view of how quickly yellow pages revenues are likely to decline in the future.

The Company has projected expected loss to be paid of $14.3 million on one transaction from 2000 backed by manufactured housing loans with
a net par of $69.0 million. The Company insures a total of $368.4 million net par of securities backed by manufactured housing loans, a total of
$244.4 million rated BIG.

The Company has $164.8 million of net par exposure to the city of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, of which $92.9 million is BIG. The Company has
paid $3.3 million in net claims to date, and expects a full recovery.

Recovery Litigation
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As of May 10, 2011, the Company had filed lawsuits with regard to six second lien U.S. RMBS transactions insured by AGM or AGC, alleging
breaches of R&W both in respect of the underlying loans in the transactions and the accuracy of the information provided to AGM and AGC,

and failure to cure or repurchase defective loans identified by AGM and AGC to such persons. These transactions consist of the ACE Securities
Corp. Home Equity Loan Trust, Series 2006-GP1, the ACE Securities Corp. Home Equity Loan Trust, Series 2007-SL2 and the ACE Securities
Corp. Home Equity Loan Trust, Series 2007-SL3 transactions (in each of which AGC or AGM has sued Deutsche Bank AG affiliates DB
Structured Products, Inc. and ACE Securities Corp. in the Supreme Court of New York), the SACO I Trust 2005-GP1 transaction (in which

AGC has sued JPMorgan Chase & Co. s affiliate EMC Mortgage Corporation in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York) and the Flagstar Home Equity Loan Trust, Series 2005-1 and Series 2006-2 transactions (in which AGM has sued Flagstar Bank, FSB,
Flagstar Capital Markets Corporation and Flagstar ABS, LLC in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York).

AGM has also filed a lawsuit in the Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles, against UBS Securities LLC and Deutsche
Bank Securities, Inc., as underwriters, as well as several named and unnamed control persons of IndyMac Bank, FSB and related IndyMac
entities, with regard to two U.S. RMBS transactions that AGM had insured, alleging violations of state securities laws and breach of contract,
among other claims. One of these transactions (referred to as IndyMac Home Equity Loan Trust 2007-H1) is a second lien transaction and the
other (referred to as IndyMac IMSC Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-HOA-1) is a first lien transaction.
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In December 2008, Assured Guaranty (UK) Ltd. ( AGUK ) sued J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. ( JPMIM ), the investment manager in
the Orkney Re II transaction, in the Supreme Court of the State of New York alleging that JPMIM engaged in breaches of fiduciary duty, gross
negligence and breaches of contract based upon its handling of the investments of Orkney Re II. In January 2010, the court ruled against AGUK

on a motion to dismiss filed by JPMIM, dismissing the AGUK s claims for breaches of fiduciary duty and gross negligence on the ground that

such claims are preempted by the Martin Act, which is New York s blue sky law, such that only the New York Attorney General has the

authority to sue JPMIM. AGUK appealed and, in November 2010, the Appellate Division (First Department) issued a ruling, ordering the court s
order to be modified to reinstate AGUK s claims for breach of fiduciary duty and gross negligence and certain of its claims for breach of

contract, in each case for claims accruing on or after June 26, 2007. In December 2010, JPMIM filed a motion for permission to appeal to the

Court of Appeals on the Martin Act issue; that motion was granted in February 2011. Separately, at the trial court level, a preliminary conference
order related to discovery was entered in February 2011 and discovery has commenced. See Note 17.

In June 2010, AGM sued JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and JPMorgan Securities, Inc. (together, JPMorgan ), the underwriter of debt issued by
Jefferson County, in the Supreme Court of the State of New York alleging that JPMorgan induced AGM to issue its insurance policies in respect
of such debt through material and fraudulent misrepresentations and omissions, including concealing that it had secured its position as
underwriter and swap provider through bribes to Jefferson County commissioners and others. In December 2010, the court denied JPMorgan s
motion to dismiss. AGM is continuing its risk remediation efforts for the Jefferson County exposure.

In September 2010, AGM, together with TD Bank, National Association and Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, filed a complaint in

the Court of Common Pleas in the Supreme Court of Pennsylvania against The Harrisburg Authority, The City of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania (the
City ), and the Treasurer of the City in connection with certain Resource Recovery Facility bonds and notes issued by the Harrisburg Authority,

alleging, among other claims, breach of contract by both the Harrisburg Authority and the City, and seeking remedies including an order

compelling the Harrisburg Authority to pay all unpaid and past due principal and interest and to charge and collect sufficient rates, rental and

other charges adequate to carry out its pledge of revenues and receipts; an order compelling the City to budget for, impose and collect taxes and

revenues sufficient to satisfy its obligations; and the appointment of a receiver for the Harrisburg Authority. See Note 17.

Net Loss Summary

The following table provides information on loss and LAE reserves net of reinsurance and salvage and subrogation recoverable on the
consolidated balance sheets.

Loss and LAE Reserve, Net of Reinsurance and Salvage and Subrogation Recoverable
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U.S. RMBS:

First lien:

Prime first lien

Alt-A first lien

Option ARM

Subprime

Total first lien

Second lien:

Closed end second lien
HELOC

Total second lien

Total U.S. RMBS
Other structured finance
Public finance

Total financial guaranty
Other

Subtotal

Effect of consolidating
financial guaranty VIEs
Total(1)

Edgar Filing: ASSURED GUARANTY LTD - Form 10-Q/A

As of March 31, 2011 As of December 31, 2010
Loss and Salvage and Loss and Salvage and
LAE Subrogation LAE Subrogation
Reserve(1) Recoverable(2) Net Reserve(1) Recoverable(2)
(in millions)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
1.1 $ $ 1.1 1.2 $
39.0 4.6 344 39.2 2.6
112.8 76.2 36.6 223.3 63.0
82.7 82.7 108.3 0.1
235.6 80.8 154.8 372.0 65.7
7.7 113.3 (105.6) 7.7 50.3
7.5 849.1 (841.6) 7.1 843.4
15.2 962.4 947.2) 14.8 893.7
250.8 1,043.2 (792.4) 386.8 959.4
151.2 1.8 149.4 131.1 1.4
59.4 36.6 22.8 81.6 344
461.4 1,081.6 (620.2) 599.5 995.2
2.1 2.1 2.1
463.5 1,081.6 (618.1) 601.6 995.2
(62.5) (153.5) 91.0 (49.5) (92.2)
401.0 $ 928.1 $ (527.1) 552.1 $ 903.0 $
34

Net

(restated)

1.2
36.6
160.3
108.2
306.3

(42.6)
(836.3)
(878.9)
(572.6)

129.7

47.2
(395.7)

2.1
(393.6)

42.7
(350.9)
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(D) The March 31, 2011 loss and LAE consists of $419.6 million loss and LAE reserve net of $18.6 million of reinsurance
recoverable on unpaid losses. The December 31, 2010 loss and LAE consists of $574.4 million loss and LAE reserve net of $22.3 million of
reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses.

2) Salvage and subrogation recoverable is net of $128.9 million and $129.4 million in ceded salvaged and subrogation
recorded in reinsurance balances payable at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
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The following table presents the loss and LAE by sector for financial guaranty contracts accounted for as insurance that was recorded in the
consolidated statements of operations. Amounts presented are net of reinsurance and net of the benefit for recoveries from breaches of R&W.

Loss and LAE Reported

on the Consolidated Statements of Operations

First Quarter
2011 2010
(restated)
(in millions)
Financial Guaranty:

U.S. RMBS:

First lien:

Prime first lien $ 0.1) $ 0.1
Alt-A first lien 8.2 5.4
Option ARM (29.1) 444
Subprime 9.4) 24.7
Total first lien (30.4) 74.6
Second lien:

Closed end second lien 9.9) 4.4
HELOC 61.0 17.9
Total second lien 51.1 22.3
Total U.S. RMBS 20.7 96.9
Other structured finance 20.3 10.5
Public finance (15.8) 27.7
Total financial guaranty 25.2 135.1
Other

Subtotal 25.2 135.1
Effect of consolidating financial guaranty VIEs (50.7) (24.2)
Total loss and LAE (recoveries) $ (25.5) $ 110.9

The following table provides information on financial guaranty insurance and reinsurance contracts categorized as BIG as of March 31, 2011
and December 31, 2010:



Number of risks(2)
Remaining
weighted-average
contract period (in
years)

Outstanding exposure:
Principal

Interest

Total

Expected cash
outflows(inflows)
Potential recoveries(3)
Subtotal

Discount

Present value of
expected cash flows
Deferred premium
revenue

Reserves (salvage)(4)
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Financial Guaranty Insurance BIG Transaction Loss Summary

BIG 1
Gross Ceded
(restated) (restated)
129 41)
12.8 19.2
$ 54913 $ (570.0)
3,493.5 (547.6)
$ 89848 $ (1,117.6)
$ 136.1 $ (6.5)
(151.1) 1.7
(15.0) (4.8)
(74.6) 17.8
$ (89.6) $ 13.0
$ 1215  $ (16.9)
$  (102.0) $ 15.1

March 31, 2011
BIG Categories
BIG 2 BIG 3
Gross Ceded Gross Ceded
(dollars in millions)
(restated) (restated)
96 41) 117 (44)
8.6 6.5 8.5 6.0
$ 58225 $ (2366) $ 8,1922 $ (702.4)
2,653.8 (78.4) 2,344.8 (183.2)
$ 84763 $ (31500 $ 10,537.0 $ (885.6)
$ 15820 $ (733) $ 26720 $ (148.2)
(677.2) 25.5 (3,021.7) 194.3
904.8 (47.8) (349.7) 46.1
(437.6) 29.3 (27.9) (8.4)
$ 4672 $ (18.5) $ (377.6) $ 37.7
$ 5724  $ (30.3) $ 9959 $ (120.7)
$ 2478 $ 7.1) $ 877.9) $ 103.9
36

$
$
$

$

Total
BIG,
Net(1)

(restated)
342

9.6

17,997.0
7,682.9
25,679.9

4,162.1
(3,628.5)

533.6
(501.4)

322

1,521.9
(620.2)

Effect of
Consolidating
VIEs
$
$
$ (404.7)
395.9
(8.8)
(16.1)
$ (24.9)
$ (274.0)
$ 91.0

$
$
$

$

Total

(restated)

342

9.6

17,997.0
7,682.9
25,679.9

3,757.4
(3,232.6)

524.8
(517.5)

7.3

1,247.9
(529.2)
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Number of risks(2)
Remaining
weighted-average contract
period (in years)
Outstanding exposure:
Principal

Interest
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Financial Guaranty Insurance BIG Transaction Loss Summary

December 31, 2010
BIG Categories
Effect
Total of
BIG 1 BIG 2 BIG 3 BIG, Consolidating
Gross Ceded Gross Ceded Gross Ceded Net(1) VIEs Total
(dollars in millions)

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

119 (45) 98 42) 115 (42) 332 332

11.7 16.0 8.4 7.9 8.8 6.0 9.6 9.6
$ 6,173.0 $ (7233) $ 58993 $ (1828) $ 79545 $ (673.6) $ 18447.1 $ $ 18,447.1
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